Minutes/Regular Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Meeting 6
Thursday, Sepiember 18, 2003

Chairperson Ferrera asked for their hoped for starting date, and Mr. Aragona replied they
hoped to start the project in 2004,

Ms. White asked if they had ever built on & contaminated property before? Mr. Aragona
replied that they had. Last year they completed a 100,000 square foot Farmer Jack
anchored shopping center in the City of Monroe. He mentianed that project was similar
in size and scope (o the one they were proposing {onight. The project in Monroe was
literally built on an old dump and had a number of environmental problems associated
with it. He said they gone through that entire process and so were not as alraid of it as
they were the iirst time.

Ms, White asked i they were fuil as far as tenants were concerned? Mr. Aragona
responded that they were not announcing it generally or signing leases yet. They wanted
lo get past a couple more steps with the City before they got to that point, but said they
had a munber of interested parties.

Chairperson Fervera asked if there was anything Stafl or Ms. Ferrari wanted to add, and
was {old not at this time. Since there was na public comment 1o be heard, he said he
would entertain a motion.

MOTION by Mr. [Hooper, seconded by Ms. White, in the matier of City File No, 98-
047.2 (Holiday Village Brownfield), the Brownfieid Redevelopment Authority
APPROVES the BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT PLAN based on the plan
dated received by the Planning Department on August 26, 2003, with the following
finding:

FINDING

1. That the submitted plan meets the requirements for a Brownfield Plan under State
Act 381 and the City of Rochester Hills.

Avyes: All
Nays: None
Absent; Robbing MOTION CARRIED

4b. NEW BUSINESS:
Hamlin/Adams Brownfield Redevelopment, File No. 03-013

Location: The sife is at the northeast corner of the intersection of Flambin and Adams
Rouds, identified as Parcel Numbers 15-29-101-022 and 15-29-101-023,
zoned Single Family Residential (R-2)

Reguest: Single Business Tax Credit (SBT) and Tax Increment Financing (TTF)
Applicant: Frank Aragona Trust and Tienken Properties LLC

37020 Garfield, Suite T-1
Clinton Twp., Michigan 48036

Chairperson Ferrera asked Mr. Delacourt Lo give the Board any information from Staff al
this time.

Mr. Delacaurt said this project showed from one extreme to the other as it was as
comnplicated as any you might see in the City that doesn’t involve an enortnous amount ol
property. Itis the site of a former landfiil and the City is well awars of the contamination
on the preperty. Previously the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) had spent
millions of dollars atlempting (o clean the site, but still had to close it up prior Lo finishing
the job. Through their investigation they identified additional contamination well above
residential eriterta. The site obviousty qualifies as a facility,

The applicants are looking at about 19 miliion dollars in eligible investment and a request
for three and a hall million dollars in TIF to be paid back over an eight or nine year
period. The Brownfield Plan is based on a propesed development that the site is not



Minutes/Regular Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Meeting 7
Thursday, September (8, 2003

zoned or master planned for. Staff hus had discussions with the developer, and Mr,
Delacourt was sure they could go into great detail about the problems with the zoning
district generating enough tax increase to pay back the environmental costs associated
with it. Not only that, bul there are general problems in putting residential over a
contaminated site. They are here asking for both TIF financing and an SBT Credit.

Staff has reviewed the Brown{eld Plan, and has found ihat the Plan iiself as submitted, if
the conditions attached to it were to be approved, would be acceptable as a Brownfield
Plan by the City of Rochester Hills. 1t also meets the requirements of Act 381, City Stafl
has recommended that adminiswative costs of 10 percent be put into the Plan. This
would amount to about $50,000 per year to be paid into the City’s Revolving Fund, and
would probably exiend the pay back period by one year.

The City Assessor has reviewed the Plan and has some minor adjustments he would
reconunend making to some of the numbers. 1t is notiing that would change the overall
look of the Plan or have any major impact on what the Directors have before them. Staff
recommends that these conditions be addressed, reviewed and approved by Staff. [fthe
Board recommends the Plan for approval these conditions should be taken care of prior to
the Plan appearing before City Council,

Any zoning issucs should be addressed by the Planning Commission and City Couneil
before Final Approval. Mr. Delacourt said it had been a question of which direction to
take with the project first. Stalf recommended the Applicant start with the Brown(eld
Board, to pul it on record, look at some of the contamination on the site, and determnine
what a Brownfield Plan would take. This information would go along with any request
for rezoning. e explained this is a chance Tor the Board 1o voice its opinion on the Plan
as well.

Belore turning over the meeting to the Applicants, Chairperson Ferrera wanted to clarify
thai the Board has no awtherity, no say other than as citizens of the conmunity over the
zoning issue on this matter. He advised that the purpose of the Board was to deal with
the Brownfield Redevelopment Plan, and told the Applicants and the Board that he would
fike to stick to that issue. He then asked the Applicants to make their presentation on the
development, and more specificaily about their Brownfield Redevelopment Plan.

Mr, Kashat began by referencing a drawing of the site, pointing out the east parcel that
was historically used as a landfill. He explained the £il consisted of contaminated
malerials that at one time contained drums and other buried hazardous materials. The
DEQ did a response action there to remove the materials, however because the costs were
escalating on the preject their initial response action was limited to just removing the
drums. The coniaminated soils remained on the siie, as well as other materials (hat may
be encroaching beyond the fenced area.

Mr. Karus asked what was his source of information, and was to)d by Mr. Kashat it was
from State reports. Mr. Karas asked il that State file would be available 1o the Board?
Mr. Delacourt told him that City Stafl had the report because the DEQ worked with the
City during their clean up cfforts. Mr. Kashat said one ol the challenges of developing
this property was that the DEQ left a lien of close 1o [our million doflars on the property
to cover the cost of their removal actions.

Mr. Kashat went on to explain that some other light industrial/commercial activily
scewrred on the parcels. He said there are no real indications of landlling or drum burial
on the other portiens of the site; however historically there was a lot of land scaming from
surface removal, as if they were taking ofT the 1op six inches of soil. They have some
concerns that there could be pockets of drums buried in other areas.

After the DEQ completed their removal actions, other parties did some additionsl
investigation on the parcels to show that the levels there were close to residential. Since
then things have remained on hold. The State talked about doing some additional
investigation, and the last lime they were owt there was aboul a year ago. They did some
borings but there has been nothing clse planned for clean up.




Minules/Regular Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Meeting 8
Thursday, September 18, 2003

Because of the investigative work done, the Applicants feit there was enough previous
data to provide some reliable numbers. They have been able to put together a prefty good
picture that the levels of contamination across the site are well above residentinl, T liey
have also been able to starl estimating costs o meet a residential standard if (he
Community goal is for it to remain residential.  Mr. Kashat told the Board that in the
Brownfield Plan they have provided a range of estimaied costs. They arc looking ar three
and a half milkion dollars in terms of & TIF, which is geared more toward commercial
development of the site, with the clean up to a conumercial standard and investigation te a
comimercial standard.

Mr, Linton explained there is another cost estimate, which was for unrestricted use. This
would entail the complete remeval of everything from the site that was above the
residential standard, and being able to put anything back on it such as playgrounds and
residential development, This cost is estimated at {ive million doMars.

Mr. Kashat said you could see their interest in moving this site toward s commercial use.
It becomies eusier in terms of management for reuse, and clean up costs of the site as well.
He felt the Brownfield Plan presented an extensive investigation, which is necessar ¥ L0
refine that three and & balf milkien-dollar number. To arrive at that fgure they had to
make some assumptions. They want f0 do an investigation, with an estimated cost of
between one hundred and one hundred forty thousand dollars fora complete testing of the
entire site. Hopefully this will allow them to take that three and a half miltion-dollar
figure down as [ar as one million dollars. In that case the TIF they are looking at would
be for one million instead of three and a half million doilars. The investigative work will
give them that information, so the investigaiion costs are part of the TIF as well. The
investigation will focus on levels of contamination at the surface of the fill arca, and an
area ol PCB contamination in the northern central area. There is evidence of suspected
buried drums in fwoe areas of the parcel, They want to put in some additional monitoring
wells around the property (o evaluate groundwater contamination and migration as well.
The proposed investigation was generally cullined in another drawing brought by the
Applicants. Mr. Kashat referenced the squares that represented the number of surface
samples they want to do over the fill area. They want to remove the levels of
contamination in the fill area that are above a commercial or industrial standard, those
that present an unreasonable risk to the site or occupants. Those places do exist there
now in a small area, not over the entire landfill area. They want to do surface sampling to
show that the ievels of contamination at the surface, or direct contact, are acceptable.
Ultimately the goal will be to pave over this area, and remove only the contamination that
presents a threat 1 hunzan health. The question was taised earlier in the meeting about
longer term mienitoring, and although it was nol new part of the plan il very well could be
part of the long-term plan o do ground water monitoring. It would dey pend upon the
resulis of the investigation that they want to complete.

Mr. Kashat indicated areas of the property where they wanted 1o do soil borings to define
the extent of PCB contamination or possible drum disposal. There were also areas where
he indicated monitoring wells would be mstalled 1o evaluate ground water. He pointed
out a striped area where they wanted lo do a geophysical survey lo make sure there are no
further arcas of buried drums. There have been a number of fest pits dug to make sure
that is not the case, but a geophysical survey has not been done. [He explained it was
basically a big meta! detector that would take over the entire area. 1§ there is evidence of
melal anomalies they will go in with backhoes and begin to evaluate the potential for
buried drums there as well.

Mr, Karas asked the depth of the buried drums. Mr.Kashat respended that they were
fairly ncar the surface, from four feet to six feet.

Chaimperson Ferrera restated that the three and a hall million dollars they idemtified in
costs was to lake it to commercial standards, and it would be a lol more o take it to
residential standards. He asked if he was correct that the investigative costs could not be
recouped through TIF il they did them now. My, Kashat explained that the reason they
were here now and had included those costs as part of the plan was because they want 1o
get the plan approved. Then when they do the investigation it is eligible for
reimbursement.



Minutes/Regular Browntield Redevelopment Authority Meeting 9
Thursday, September 18, 2003

Chairperson Ferrera asked if they went out and did it on their own without plan approvil
they could not apply for reimbursement, and was told he was correct. Also the time they
spend now reviewing ail the data is not eligible as part of a TIF. Chairpersen Ferrera
asked if this property was alse made up of three parcels like the Tienken Road property.
He wanted to know if they found through their investigation thal the east parce! quahfies
as a facility but the other properties don’t, would the law still sllow them to combine the
properties? Mr. Linton said that the Brownficld Redevelopment Act has a provision that
says you can include adjacent and contigucus properties in your Brownfield Plan if they
contribute (o the overail value of the projeet, and that cerfainty would be the case here.

Chairperson Ferrera stated that without the comer piece the property would have a lot
less value. He then asked where the City property was located in relation (o the
Hamlin/Adams site? Mr. Delacourt told him it directly abutted this property o the cast.
Chairperson Ferrera asked about the situation with the City property, and if there was
evidence or concern about contamination there?

Mr. Delacourt stated the DEG has monitaring wells on the City’s piece and has been
reviewing the results with the City. So far he did not believe that they had detected any
olf-sitc conlamiration, or if they had it was at very low levels. But it is of concern to the
City because it is close to the Clinton River and close to a City Park. Mr. Stevenson
reiterated that the Clinton River is very near that property and asked if the DEQ did any
testing for contamination migrating to the river? Mr. Delacourt responded that the Lest
wells on the City’s piece were located between the Applicant’s piece and the river, and so
far they have not shown any real concemn with contamination on the park site. Mr, Linton
added {hat the DEQ’s concern with ground waler emanating from this site would be if it
exceeded the levels they have established as safe for entry into surface water. They are
monitoring t assure contamination that would be hazardous to surface water is not
getting there. So far they have not identified an issue with that.

Mr. Stevensan wanted clarification of what they meant when they said (here was no
contamination at the surface. Me asked what the definition of the surface was, two [eet,
three feet? Mr. Linton repled that generally surface levels were described in distance
above sea level, especially when you are doing monitering wells, The ground surface at
the location of a monitoring well would be surveyed 1o the undredths of a oot at so
many feel above sea level. Then they would calculate where the ground water is under
that to give the distance.

Mr. Stevenson asked if there are PCB’s or PCT’s in the soil but it is not in the ground
water, at what depth is it okay to have these contaminates? Mr. Linton responded that the
depth was not so much an issue, but what will leach or follow rain water into the ground
water. The DEQ has two ways to calculate that, As a rule of thumb you can use 20 times
the standard that would be allowed in the gronnd water, and that is generaily what is
used. Or you can do an actual test and sec how the soils leach. Mr. Kashat added there
was also a third part 1o that in terms of direct contact with the soils at the surface. 1f there
is contamination right at the surface they define the surface as zero to six inches, which is
considered a direct contact hazard. Inn a case where that same level of contamination is a
hazard to peaple, it calls for cap and caver, so that it no longer presents a direct contact
hazard. At the pomnt where concentrations are ahove a direct contact hazard level, and
possibly above a volatile emission of soil to ambient air level, a different standard necds
to be looked at. Typically when there is contamination above a certain standard a six-
inch cap is done. This means you have covered over the ssue and eliminated the hazard,
Part of the solution on this site would be 1o do a cap and cover over areas that are above
an acceptable standard.

Chairperson Ferrera stated that the biggest matter for the Board is the TIF, and he wanted
to be clear on what will happen if they approve the Plan and all the other steps are taken
to create the TIF. The monies that this property would generate in property raxes will go
te pay the eligible activities, which include the investigation, the environmenial due care,
and additional construction costs. These costs will be presented by the Developer at the
appropriate time and then paid by the City, Chairperson Femrera asked if his
understanding was correct, and Mr. Delacourt said that it was. Chairperson Ferrera asked



Minutes/Regular Brawnlicld Redevelopment Autherity Meeting 10
Thursday, Septernber 18, 2003

which body in the City would actually control the process? Ms. Ferrari replied that the
Developer will pay all these costs up front, and the laxpayer at the site, either the
Developer or a new purchaser or tenant, 1he payer of both real and personal property
taxes, will generate tax doltars, The Finance Dircetor will cut a check for the Developer
each year in the amount of the increment that is generated that year on that site until they
are paid hack in full

Chairperson Ferrera clarified that the first thing that will happen is that the City will have
to establish a separate tax zone for this property, so that any money from progperty laxes is
captured and does not go into the General Fund. Mr. Dawsoen stated thal was correcl.
Chairperson Ferrera asked if that included all the school and County taxes as well? Ms.
Ferrari said if you decide to negotiate with the Developer to capture funds 1o the
Revolving Loan Fund up front, which js that 19% per year Mr. Delacour mentioned
carlier, your tax table would get a bit more complicaled. This is because you can’t
caplure school taxes 1o be deposited into the Local Revolving Fund. Although it is a Hitle
more complicated, it is definitely doable. State education tax and local school operating
faxes would not be captured.

Chairperson Ferrera stated that earlier it was mentioned that personal property tax would
also be captured, so any renters with personal property wouid pay into the fund. The
development goes on for a year or two and bills are presented in a format established by
the City, winich the City will pay regularly. Does the City pay the Developer, or does it
pay the bills directly? Mr. Dawson said the Developer would pay these bills in advance.
As the caplure comes in over time the City will have an amount of money to draw down.
Ms. Ferrari said the Developer would provide invoices or receipts to the City.

Mr. Kashat stated that at the end of the project they would readjust the tax tables to cover
the smount of expenses that are eligible to be reimbursed. Chairperson Ferrera asked if
they would come only one time to the City for payment, or would it be monthly or
quarterly? Ms. Ferrari stated that the Developer would be done with the project in a year
ot so, much soouer than the life of the plan. Mr. Dawson explained there would be an
account 1o pay reimbursement money. They would investigate the expenditures to be
sure they qualified, that they met the Plan requirements and that they are eligible costs,
Chairperson Ferrera asked who would be responsibie to review this? Mr. Linton stated it
was really an accounting exercise. As an accounting practice you would need back up
showing what tlie work was for.

Chairpersan Ferrera wanted 1o know how the City would audit this; how fhey would
know what they were paying was an appropriale cost? Ms. Ferrari said the Developer
would provide documentation that they had paid for eligible activities. A document will
be prepared called a Work Plan if they are collecting school taxes, and she believed they
were. That Work Plan will have more detailed information about what the eligible
activities and their costs are. When the invoices come in the City would look at them and
compare them o be sure they were iin line with what is in the Work Plan. By statute they
are not obligated lo sign & Redevelopment Agreement because there are no MEGA-
related activities here. However il is an option you can choose,

Chairperson Ferrera wanted to clarifly what oversight the City needed to perform to be
sure what is presented by the Developer is appropriale. Mr. Delacourt replied that the
City would require whatever is needed to verify that the monies it is paying out are for
eligible activities. Specilically what that documentation will be will depend on esch
mvoice that is presented, what it cornes with and what it Jooks like, He felt very
comfortable that the City would not reimburse for something that it can’t verify.

Mr. Karas offered if these invoices were not coming daily, they would come in at the eud
of the completed project to support their claim for three and a half million dollars. It is
not a monthiy check that the City would have to write. The reimbursement comes from
ihe increased value, and the mvoices will have to support and prove the expenses. Mr.
Stevenson said the issue they were talking about was accountabilily, and who is
responsible for seeing that it was correcl. Mr. Derek answered that City Staff would be
responsibie.




Minutes/Regular Brownfield Redevelopmen: Authority Meeting 11
Thursday, Seprember 18, 2003

Mr. Linton added that since they were asking for school tax money the Work Plan would
have 1o go lo the Department of Environmental Quality and be approved by them. If they
don’t think that something is 4 reasonable cost they will come back &t them. Mr. Dawson
added that the DEQ has experts who make estimates of what is a reasonable cost.
Chairperson Ferrera explaimed he did nol mean to question their integrity, bui this is new
to the Board and he felt it was impartant that the City was doing all that it should be. Mr.
Dawson explained that any time there are scheol funds involved there is increased State
serutiny, Mr. Linton said that he had worked with the State up until a year ago, and that
they examined all these things in great detail. Mr. Delaconrt added that this was part of
the reason they asked for the ten per cent administrative costs. They are asking for
$36,000 to help pay to administer the project throughout its entire course.

Chairperson Ferrera stated that if the Developer spent three and a half million dollars fo
remediate and clean the property to commercial standards, obviously in 4 year or two the
City would not have three and a hall million dollars. He asked i e was correct that the
Developer finances that cost, and every year the City pays a portion of that amount hased
on the amount of taxes that come in. He was 1old that was right. Chairpersen Ferrera
said it would be in Mr. Aragona’s benelil 1o get the property developed quickly, the
building occupied, and to generate a ot of tax dollars, Then he would recoup that money
more quickly. He then asked the Boward if they had further questions.

Mr. Wallerhouse asked 1f any repayment would be ar the point when there is substantial
completion, and was told that was correct. He said then the numbers that they werc
locking at, when it reaches that taxable value is when the City would begin the
reimbursement.

Mr. Dawson gave an exampie that 2003 is the current vear tax roll, which would become
ihe basc year they establish the Plan as a Brownfield. By the 2004 assessment yoar
whatever value is there December 31%) ifit is greater than the 2003 value, the difference
15 captured, Il you look at the chart, it shows a smail amount the first vear because there
may be no capture. In 2004 or 20035 they may be 80 percent or fully done, you capture
whatever is there. You pay out, iess the 10 % you hold back, and the rest you capture to
pay towards the costs.

Mr. Karas asked if the only source of funds for reimbursement was the increased tax
value for that parcel, and Mr. Dawson said that was correct, it relied solely on the fax
capture, however long it would take.

Chairperson Ferrera asked if'it was correct that if the plan was based on three and a hall
million dollars but the costs are only two and half millien, ance the property has
generated those two and a half million dollars that’s the end of the TIF? Mr. Dawson
said unless the City wants to capture funds for the ensuing five years (o establish a
Revelving Fund, The developer would not get the money but the City would. Mr.
Linton explained they could establish a local Site Remediation Revolving Fund to finance
cther Brownfield projects.

Chairperson Ferrera asked Mr. Aragona to describe the project. Mr. Aragona said they
were working io develop a mixed-use development with retail and office. Along Hamlin
Road there would be single users like drugstores, theme restaurants, and the like. Behind
that there are two buildings with retail on the first floor and office on the second. The
type of offices they are envisioning in this first building are those that deal directly with
the public, such as mortguage companies, chiropractors, and medical services. The second
floor of the second building weuld be more of a pure office use. In the plan they have
provided a great buffer against the residential. They are not building over the excavated
area because they are afraid 11 will not hold footings, or that the cost involved in trying to
put [ootings in that area would be prohibitive. Plus they could cap the area more easily if
there were not buildings in the way. The type of project they ave envisioning has a
lifestyle, downtown kind of feel with a secand story leok. Lven the buildings without a
true second story will have a fagade-like second story, 1o give them more of a
“downtown” feel. They felt residential would not work on this site. The costs involved
couid not be recouped with residential development, and even if a residential level clean
up was done they arc concerned ihere would still be that “taint” there with consumers



Minutes/Regular Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Meeting 12
Thursday, September 1§, 2003

being concerned about residual contamination on the property. Even if it is completely
cleaned up, from a markeling sense they will not be able 1o convinee people that it is
totally safe. Like power lines, there is no empirical evidence to suggest that they are a
health hazard, but there is a conumon beliel out there that they are. As developers they
Just can’ get past that.

Mr. Stevenson suggested that the Board should not be concemed with infrastructure
problems such as are the roads geliing in and out of the facility and adequate parking.
Chairperson Ferrera responded that a Director should not keep quiel on something he
wanted to say, but that parl of the project is not our role. The Board’s role is approving a
Brownfield Development Plan, and the SBT and TTF that go with it. ft doesn’t mean that
the Developer is locked into a site plan, which will be deferred to the Planning and
Engineering Departments as well as City Council,

My, Karas asked if this were part of the SmartZone being worked on with Oakland
University? Mr. Delacourt responded that # was not within the defined boundaries of the
SmartZene, although it did abut portions of it. Mr. Karas asked if there was a possibility
it might be incladed? Mer. Delacourt responded not [or the foresecable future.

Mr. Dawsor: said the SmartZone boundaries overlapped those of the Land Development
Finance Authority {LDFA), and added that neither of these could capture school taxes.

Mr. Delacourt asked the Applicants if, based on their discussion tonight, they had any
opinion or thought about the City requiring them to submit a Reimbursement Agreement
as an additionai picce priov to action by Council? Because they are the first big plan the
City has done, having that additional piece would give the Board a run-through of exactly
how the repayment will work. Mr. Delacourt said he had seen such agreemenis approved
in the past; and he could provide them with an example. Basically it is a series of
conditions on when bills will be submitied, how the City will be paid back, and what
information is required on the submittal of invoices to be pajd,

Mr. Linton said it was up to the Developers whether they wanted o provide that
Agreement. Mr. Aragona stated it would not be a problem, that they did it for the City of
Monroe. Mr. Delacourt said it was a simple decument that can be amended if needed,
and he thought that afler hearing the discussion tonight it would be a good idea. He
suggested including the submission and approval of a Reimbursement Agreement by the
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority prior to review and action by City Council as a
condttion. Mr. Delacourt said the Agreement should come back to Lhe BRA fur review
and approval ai a fulure meeting

Ms. Ferrari said the BRA did not technically approve the Reimbursement Agreement
because it was an agreement between the City and the Developer, Basically (he BRA
would make a recommendation that the City Counci approve it. Althouglh it was not an
approval, the Board should review it

Chairpersen Ferrera asked Mr, Delacourt if there was a need to 1alk about after
repayment is made and the Revolving Fund at this point? Mr. Delacourt said they were
working now on a condition to address that point.

Chairperson Ferrcra asked the applicant the total acreage of the parcels on the site? He
was told it was a little over 22 acres. He questioned why that did not match with the Staff
Report, and referenced the Site Description that stated the “site consists of two parcels
approximalely 28 acres in size.” After some discussion it was confirmed that this was the
correct site description. Chairperson Ferrera said hie would be more comfortable il ihe
maps the Applicant had put in their plan reflected the current conditions, because
although the maps had a very recent date the roads depicted had changed. He wondered
ifit would be appropriate to ask the Applicant to correet the documents. Mr. Delacourt
said the Assessor had asked for minor changes to the Legal Deseription, and although
those things were not required, the Board could certainly ask for them.

Chairpersen Ferrera asked Mr. Dawson if there was anything more he wanted to add to
the discussion? My, Dawson said that if they wanted to do a five-year fund he could run



Minutes/Regular Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Meeting i3
Thursday, Seprember {8, 2003

ihe tax tables. Mr. Delacoust said they were putting the language for that in as a
condition. Mr. Dawson said one of the comments he had was that typically when you do
your cost estimate you do it on the costs, and # lot of time the assessed value is not half of
that actual cost. Cast doesn’t necessarily equate lo market value, especially in
commercial development. Typically It is a little bit {ess, and that is why we said there
would be some minor tweaking to our estimale of what the market value of that project
weuld be. The estimate will be slightly less, so instead of a seven year recapture, it might
be cight years. He felt it was a minor issue.

Chairperson Ferrera stated that theoretically it could be 30 years if they only develop one
or two buildings on the property. It could take a lot longer than seven years. Mr. Linton
said it be related to how fast the development is phased in.

Mr. Delacourt said he would recommend the inclusion of one more condition, “All
available tax increment revenue be deposited into the City’s Local Site Remediatian
Revoalving Fund for a period of five years afier the Developer is reimbursed for all
cligible activities approved as part of this plan.”

Mr. Linton asked if they wanted him to revisc the Plan to say that, or have i as part of the
motien? Chairperson Ferrera said it would be included as a condition of the motion.

Mr. Dawson asked i the len on the property was a point that needed to be clarified? Mr.
Delacourt answered that is a situation between the current owner of the proparty and the
State. He said action will have to be taken to remove that lien rom the property before
they can de anything with it. He didn™t fee! the plan would have to be conditioned on it.
Mr. Kashat said that from the Developer’s perspective, unless they are assured that lien
can be removed the project is not viable.

Mr. Hooper questioned that in the last condition they talked about “afler five years,” and
wanted zn explanation of what they were given five years (o do.

Mr. Dawson said that it starts at the point in time afler the Developer is paid back. You
have five years you can caplure the tax increment and put it into the Site Remediation
Fund to be used for other qualified projects in the community, These could be City
tandfills, or someone could come in and be funded up front for costs.

Chairperson Ferrera wanted clarification on the meaning of the phrase “all available tax
incremental revenue.” Mr. Dawson explained it meant from the base value in the year
betfore it starts, then the City captures the current value, Chairperson Ferrera said the
base value right now was a couple of thousand dolars. Mr. Dawson suggested they use
$10,000. Chairperson Perrcra hypathesized if the hase value after development is
$200,000 in taxes, would the eatire $200,000 for five years, minus the $10,000 be
captured? Ms. Ferrari stated except for the State Educalion and Schoo! Operating Taxes.

Mr. Hooper asked if that would happen in years eleven through sixteen? Mr. Dawson
added we pay them off in years seven to twelve, which would be the highest values of the
property, to pay this capture. He explained the purposes the meney could be used for
were restricted 1o site remediation and gualification. Chairperson Ferrera clarified that it
couid not go into the General Fund, or be used (o puve roads.

Mr. Hooper questioned why the time frame was five years rather than three, ten or
twenty? Mas. Ferran stated it was written in the Statute. Mr. Delacourt said that it was up
{0 five years, [ive being the maxinium that was allowed. Until the Developer was paid
off the City would get the 10 per cent, afler that it would get 100 per cent minus State
Education Tax and School Operating Taxes,

Chalrperson Feirera asked if anyone had more questions? Hearing none he suggested he
was ready to hear a motion.

MOTION by Mr. Karas, seconded by Mr. Walterhouse, in the matter of City Fife No.
03-013, Hamlin/Adams Brownlield, the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
APPROVES the BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT PLAN based on the Plan



Minutes/Regular Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Meeting i4
Thursday, September 18, 2003

dated received by the Planning Department on September 3, 2003, with the following
findings and subject to the following conditions:

FINDINGS

i. The submitted plan meets the requirements for a Brownfield Plan under
State Act 381 and the City of Rochester Hills.

2. The subject parcels are a site ol a former landfill and a source ol known
contamination within the City.

3 1f implemented, the Plan provides a rcasonabie course of action for the
remediation of a known contaminated site.

4, If implemented, the amount, pay back period, and use of Tax Incremental
Financing is reasonable for the eligible activities proposed.

CONDITIONS

1. That the proposed site receives the appropriate rezoning and/or
approval(s} by applicable City boards and commissions prior 1o review
and approval of the BRA Plan by City Council.

2 That an administration fee of not less than 10 % be included in the Plan o
be deposited into the Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund to be
reviewed and approved by City Staff prior to review of the Plan by City
Council.

3. That prior to action by City Council, the Applicant revises the Plan based
on figures provided by the City Assessor,

4. That if the extent of Due Care activities related to the subject site is altered
orrevised due to a change to the proposed development plans or proposed
use of the site the applicant shall submit an amended BRA Plan to the
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority.

3. Submission and approval of a Reimbursement Agresment prior to
subnittal to City Council for approval of the Brownfield Redevelopment
Plan.

6. All available Tax Incremental Revenue be deposited into the City’s Local
Site Remediation Revolving Fund for a periad of five years alter the
Develaper is reimbursed for all eligible activities approved as part of the
Browntield Redevelopment Plan. This plan is lo be reviewed and
approved by Staff,

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Absent: Robbins MOTION CARRIED

ANY OTHER BUSINESS:

Chairperson Ferrera asked if there was any other business, or anything that Mr. Delacourt
would like to rell the Board? Hearing nothing, he asked Ms, Ferrari, who responded that
the Board had done a good job. Mr.Karas asked if the Board would get mosthly
feedback on the projects. Mr. Delacourt said that he would give that information at the
meetings, and the Applicants would have to come back in fFont of the Board for the
Reimbursenient Agreement, the Work Plan, and other documents related to the site. In
that way the Board will know when it is going forward, as well as hear the feedback
when it goes before Planning Commission and City Council as they move ahead with



